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Wataniya insurance Company’s Invites its shareholders to attend the Extra Ordinary meeting
(first meeting)

The Board of Wataniya are pleased to invite Wataniya’s shareholders to attend the Extra Ordinary meeting
(First meeting) via Eiectronic path through TADAWULATY Portal only (Virtual Meeting), which will be held
on Sunday 29 Shabban 1442H corresponding to 11 April 2021 G at (6:30 pm), meeting will be held at the
Company Head Office — Jufflai Building — Madina Road - leddah www.tadawulaty.com.sa, taking the
safety of stakeholders and to support the social distancing regulations to combat the COVID — 19
pandemic, which Is in line with the Government arrangements to discuss the following Agenda:

1-Approval of the Board of Directors Report for the Financial year ended 31 December 2020.
2-Approval of the External Auditors for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2020.

3-Approval of the Annual Financial Statement as of 13 December 2020.



4- Approval of the appointment of External Auditors based on the Audit Committee’s recommendation,
to audit the interim Financial statement of Quarterl, Quarter2, Quarter3, Annual Financial Statement
2021, and the Quarterl 2022. And to approve their Fees.

5- Approval on the nomination of Mr. Tahir Aldabbagh as Non- Executive Board Director to complete the
current Board tenure end on 25 April 2022, the Accumulative voting will be considered as per the
Company’s By-law. (enclosed)

6- Approval of the business transaction between E A Juffali & Bros, and Wataniya Insurance Company
where there is a direct interest in this contract for Mr. Amin Alafifi & Mr. Faisal Charara as they are
Directors in both Companies. Contract Is Head Office rent. Transaction during 2020 amounted SR 3.846
Million with No preferential conditions. (Enclosed)

7- Approval of the business transaction between SNIC Insurance Co, and Wataniya Insurance Company
where there is a direct interest in this contract for Mr. Amin Alafifi & Mr. Faisal Charara as they are
Directors in both Companles. Contract is renewal of Reinsurance Non-Obligatory treaty. Transaction
during 2020 amounted SR 1.801 Million with No preferential conditions. (Enclosed)

8- Approval of the business transaction between Saudi Cement Company, and Wataniya Insurance
Company where there is a direct Interest in this contract for Mr. Amin Alafifi as a Director In both
Companies. Contract is insurance Premiums. Transaction during 2020 amounted SR 4.038 Million with No
preferential conditions. (Enclosed)

9- Approval of the business transaction between E A Juffali Information System Company, and Wataniya
Insurance Company where there is a direct interest in this contract for Mr. Amin Alafifi & Mr. Falsal
Charara as they are Directors in both Companies. Contract is renewal of IT Maintenance Services
Agreement. Transaction during 2020 amounted SR 1.209 Million with No preferential conditions.
{Enclosed)

10- Approval of the business transaction between Naghi Group of Companies, and Wataniya Insurance
Company where there is a direct interest in this contract for Mr. Tahir Aldabbagh as a Director in both
Companies. Contract is Insurance Premiums. Transaction during 2020 amounted SR 6.775 Million with No
preferential conditions. (Enclosed)

11- Approval of the payment of the Board of Directors Fees for the Financial Year end 31 December 2020
amounted SR. 1.140 Million.

12- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 1 related to the
Formation. (enclosed)

13- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 3 related to the
Company Purpose. {enclosed)

14- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 4 related to the owing
in Companies & subsidiary. (enclosed)



15 Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 7 related to the
Company’s Investment. (enclosed)

16- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 12 related to the
shares trading. (enclosed)

17- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article;: 13 related to
Increasing Capital. {enclosed)

18- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 14 related to
Decreasing Capital. (enclosed)

19- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 15 related to the
Company’s Management. (enclosed)

20- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 16 related to the
Board tenure. (enclosed)

21- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 17 related to the
Vacancy in the Board. {enclosed)

22- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 18 related to the
Board Authority. (enclosed)

23- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 19 related to the
Board Fees. (enclosed)

24- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 20 related to the
Authority of the Chalrman, Vice Chairman, Managing Director, and Company Secretary. (enclosed)

25- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 21 related to the
Board meetings. (enclosed)

26- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 22 related to the
Board meeting quorum. (enclosed)

27- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 24 related to the
Agreements and Contracts. (enclosed)

28- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 25 related to the
Shareholder meetings attendance. (enclosed)

29- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 26 related to the
Constituents shareholders meeting. (enclosed)

30- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article: 27 related to the
Constituents shareholders meeting scope. (enclosed)



31- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

Ordinary shareholders meeting scope. (enclosed)

32- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

shareholders meeting Invitations. (enclosed)

33- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

Ordinary shareholders meeting quorum. (enclosed)

34- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

Extra Ordinary shareholders meeting quorum. {enclosed)

35- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

shareholders meetings resolutions. (enclosed)

36- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

shareholders meeting Discussions. (enclosed)

37- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

External Auditors appointments. (enclosed)

38- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

External Auditors obligations. (enclosed)

39- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

Financial Documents. (enclosed)

40- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

ZAKAT & Provisions. (enclosed)

41- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

Board of Directors liability. (enclosed)

42- Approval of the amendments on the Company By-Law and the Amended Article:

Company’s Completion. (enclosed)

28 related to the

30 related to the

32 related to the

33 related to the

35 related to the

36 related to the

39 related to the

41 related to the

43 related to the

45 related to the

49 related to the

50 related to the

43- Approval of the deletion of the 10" Section of the Company By-Law related to the Company’s

Liquidation and merge it within the 9*" Section related to the Disputes. (enclosed)

44- Approval of the deletion of the 11™ Section of the Company By-Law related to Final articles and merge

it within the 9™ Section related to the Disputes. {enclosed)

All registered shareholders In (EDAA) can attend and vote electronically through (TADAWULATY) after the
end of the trading session before the EGM meeting as per the regulations. Please note that no attendance
will be allowed once the meeting commence however the voting will be available till the end of the
meeting. The meeting quorum will be 50% {distance attending — voting) only, failing to achieve the



required quorum the EGM will convene after 1 Hour from the first meeting, and the quorum will be 25%
of the shareholders.

All registered shareholders in (EDAA) can vote electronically through (TADAWULATY) as of 10:00 am
Wednesday 25 Shaaban 1442 H corresponding to 07 April 2021, till the end of the meeting. Further more
the registration on TADAWULATY will be available to all shareholders free of Charges on the following
link: www.tadawulaty.com.sa

in case of any clarification in this regards please contact the company’s shareholders relations department
on: info/@wataniya.com.sa Mobile 0556166122

Or mali us on (Board Secretary — Watanlya Insurance Company — PO Box 5832 — Jeddah 21432,
Proxy template:

Not Availabie due to the meeting will convene virtually.
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Date: 08/08 /1442 AH
Corresponding to 03/22/2021 AD

Dear shareholders of Watanlya Insurance Company

Subject: Audit Committee Report to the General Assembly of the Company's Shareholders for the flscal
year ending on December 31, 2020 AD

We Inform the shareholders of the company of Audlt Committee (the committee) commitment within Its
responsibllity to review the company's financial statements, the company's accounting policles, and
review and supervise the Internal and external avdit work In It, Where the committee met during the year
2020 AD, number (9) meetings and those meetings Included the following toplcs:

Review and approve the internal audit plans for the year 2020,
Supervising the Internal audit function and ensuring they Implement their approved plans.

s Reviewing the perlodic Internal audit reports issued for the year 2020 AD and discussing the
observations and the period required to resolve those observations by the management.

e Supervising the external audit work.

o Revlewlng the quarterly and annual financial statements until December 31, 2020 AD and
submitting the necessary recommendatlons to the Board of Directors In preparation for approval.

e Review management letter Issued by the external auditor.

e Revlewing the proposals submitted by externa! auditors related to the external audit work and
submitting the necessary recommendation to the company’s general assembly to apngl}"_\t the
external auditors for the flscal year ending on December 31, 2020,

¢ Reviewing the company’s quotatlons for internal audlt work and submitting the necessary
recommendations to the company’s board of directors.

¢ Review and approve complliance actlon plans for the year 2020,

¢ Reviewing compliance reports, which reflect the company's compllance with the requirements of
the regulatory authorities, and ensure company implements the procedures to close identified
observatlons.

¢ Revlewing the company's antl-money laundering manuat that includes policles and procedures in
accordance with the anti-money laundering guldeline,

¢ Follow up on the Central Bank's observations identified during inspection visits, and ensure the
company Implements the corrective action plans.

¢ Prasenting minutes of the committee’s meetings to the company's board of directors and
notifying the board of directors of any major remarks.

s Meeting with members of the company's executlve management and discussing supervisory
reports, whenever the need arises.

The Audit Committes conducts perlodic meetings through an annual plan that studles and analyzes the
reports of the internal auditor and the compllance manager, discusses these reports, makes observations,

st
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and develops remedlal solutlons for all operations that require correction |In accgl!mclen\ﬂgﬁpfe

regulations and instructions Issued by the supervisory authoritles, especlally fﬁ;ﬁwzﬁﬁfm
as well as following up on implementing these solutions through company’s management.

Internal Audlt System

The internal audit procedures and their effectiveness play an Important role In achieving the company's
objectives. Responslbility for establishing and monitoring the effectiveness of Internal 2udit procedures
rests with the company's Audit Committee. The internal control system Is based on what the company’s
management deems appropriate for Its actlvities, the extent of the financial Impact of the internal audit
procedures and the Intended benefit of applying those related procedures, The Internal audit system is
designed to mitigate risks rather than neutrallze them, to achleve the company's objectives. For example,
corrective actions and solutions have been proposed and developed, although not in absolute form, but
are in compllance to regulatory requirements. Also, actual assessment of losses was performed to
determine the best solutions for the company to Implement to ensure compliance and minimize financial
losses. For this, the Audit Committee was formed to periodically review the external and Internal audit
reports in the company.

The company Is committed to a balanced and reasonable internal audit procedure In terms of its design
and implementatlon. The Audit Committee confirms that there are no materlal observations about the
effectiveness of the Internal audit procedures and standards of the company.

Best Regards,

S,

Sirajuddin Anwer
Chairman of the Audit Committee

+8686 (0) 11 478 2290 G Y YT W P.O.Box 86 w.o= Rivadh 11411 &l g Sy 200,000,000 £ dadt v Ll
+866 (0) 12 867 4530 =3 & i P.O. Box 5832 w.ue Jeddah 21432 s Pald up Capital 200,000,000 SR
+866 {0) 13 B8Z 8992 6 (0] 13888 BI5T P.O. Box 1933 uue Khobar 31952 &

VAT No. : 300189677400003 g sl &30




#2020 srand 31 (B geiiall i alall Clliadl pad ja g 58
External Auditor Report on the Annul Financial
Statement ended 31 December 2020



Ww“ﬁ:&mﬂﬁ s oy vy
AN ke e e SN ik xﬁhﬁuoﬂ
SN e L 3 st AAEATE™S
e ks PWC
€8 ppasth o1 Bullding a botter

LN gl K a8 werking world

(Rpgner Latlesn 18,8 o 2yt g 2050 pabbins Bl 3 ieaal gl sl g
ald

Ly o¥o¥o jaugs 7Y ALK Ll 6l 100 ot 0 o128 Ladlasa 1€ 8) il 400 0 25 &
mgﬂ“myl,@ﬂ&gwuhﬁﬂ&ﬁnmﬁ@mﬂ&m&fh
a8 A1 Rl Ll dakgh Lot Chadglt o AL

ol Ukl Y0¥ Spags 1 LSS ,80 0 5K 50 0 ot gl o R840 8 ) gy ¢ yim guf 43 ol L) d
Ko A eV ol A 0 150 B o ey s g e A
(R L B i 1D 10 ifal iy ) SON) D o At S o

sl e

e g bl A o gl oo Lo s g € el g uB iy g s
it 2 Al i il 02010 T3 268 s oy gt b 138 D L0 Ay 0 Gl
S o Ul (30 dapd pob L1 of Slinly 200500 adgd Uiy g AN LDIANN L1y ysny L Uy g ALl il U] 3oy Alual) 8

Al sl pelad b g2t Rty

Syt dag b ypal

st o3 AT o g Al Aball 0l g T g 30 o Ay Agan] D g Ui g i8S 20 g1 o 0 g 0 gyl gl
qﬂmduswlmﬁ&u-ydu.mm‘gulmhbpﬂ?;ddplﬂ.:mﬁ-\hn&m A0 Ui 0 B b
Bl A i 081 a8 5a ol O Ul 30 gy Conhe

gl jall gt ol Uingh 3o caplls LS daplpall (uagGl el
EF T PR PR R Culil agie L0k g gl el o N1 ookl

e g a0 Al 1 Aill Al iy pgd @ | gillnad i A ikl 1Y 0 Y it 7Y d L
Clemscaiall g 83y ANl i BN el 1S d Ly il ¥ g LB

e Obeepa 3d LS L1 jpe Ll jiniglgia
Ot Al At (bl o (Gl i il o) j] @ agdman Gl Capla Y9, 6 dlhe A gl
delia A e Sl g 3 ghaaly Ll Adpall el
Coghid i) gyl sslial jhosaall (FY p pon LalhY i ghlad Sl a3 gl 3 e i JH g ety
A il amgapd A glgih LN o 011l W md 3N
e - AT
18 AN i 40 gemsin pa p il 38 g BphndS . : g ¢d p ¢ # g
_mm,.a,mu»_,g:: gt el B o B e s Ao S8 gl
grﬁjwhﬂmﬁimlﬂm
il Fuall HIY ) » il ot Ahd pagyile
R i et ot e Sl IO WA
ot RSl Dbt el Bl ol A o i Agag (36 AMnali Radaall g s 0 2 yasl
Adpadl by Bl ol o st 3 Y1 gk O
30 g padanall el e Lt T ¢ I - ph Al § ) ymp 3K )2 pd L
g . Pty ol 31 B e ) B (S i)
o Caad all aba spontl § pudel it o g et phodld
UJJMJLUAMMMQ..“UJ..\.M
e 2y debatl g Al ghalt 3y gucth Alpey St

Akt pall dgm goiia gall prs y 24 o gonn Cudil pral 1300
a3 3 e Al Ayl CARInal il 510 ity
ot pall Qpuagi gl al a1 1 01 S




EY

s

g pwe
{2l (Rotgnse LahLisa 45)) il dythgh A8 A0 (pabbuna il Y Cfiiaall gm0
) Do dagi gt pgal
Taplall ) o gl cipde s Tapall gttt i
UaLifl il 000 ULl 3 oY) Gy a0 o | il T LT 15 0 T () ¥ i o |
oy a1 Ly | il YY) ]y A (1), Y i 36 530 3 0
MJM,MWMIMM Jadll i, g-\lpll S b Uedddl L0 el

Y 5 i fpm dgls gsanl 3 1D 4 S
S0 Loy ol DA 000 B0 ik 0 el

o 4 1 Y1 S sl gt oS 1 e i (1)

Al ey gt el 1 ) Y1 ciin Sl e

dpmanll nuelly Ul Aidid il sl 1l
Hh e Sy g GUS 3y o

Al e Ly dimgl oD g 1 S el MY it (Y)
R e TP P Y PP Y I T T 1O
O3 (e el Y1 i e Al LS 0
3l il e, ) B LS 3 e gl e
gmmm,gmu_ﬂt,muﬂ

350

e L T Y U N W, FOPED P P ')
LPE BEPP PLT RN N T Y P IR
M Tpind hlas g

Ul b hal s ANy A e il @
A3

Clladi A28 a0l A mluafl gl and 5, el 3 o ilel 321
Al e yinl s g el g RUSLN celghnalt g Lkt




EY wce
Sideg s uer pwc
(L) (Ryagnan Fakluna 4858) palatl A2 g 28 500 phlinn Saall 8 CpllTiaelt ymptsall 28
AN Slaghuall

¥ um,‘MMHhMa.nM‘QAQﬁmwmgﬁ&lwa‘u’hﬁt’lﬂlﬁ
0 Cumpel el g R g 0 ang U g ghedd g 2 Tl ghell iy Mgl m chme pall g Al o2 0 (AN

] DS ya R (g (o33 3y ply reg AT st A o8 0 Jom Uy iy ¥

Lol e g aabia puycal Latiio e R g 38 i sl 51,3 Wl haia gl ALl i g T Y T pag 5ulay oy
Lol Uponanll o8 S o gl e o LN 850 o A 3 g B g 355 Y 9 301 e gl 05 1Y Lo o] (pong 2213
Ah e iy o (padell S 1A f ) pall Yleo D2

0y 45 galty il $305) Udle cny AR e 5 3 59 iy nd 359 1) (il 6 Y glnal 8 Ll

Syl pi gl g Lupudy (ULl £ A1 chytghune

Al gy LSkl o il Al o Al sl LUy LD 3,50 el By o) o By 5081
e g8 s} pma AL g e T 13 (g0 (M AR B a3 i g A€ 58, S0l oL Bl 23S 3 0 it o iy
Mai o b e B3 S Blgas iy 0 gl iy g (30 400

b =5 g gl 30 o I_,iﬁ.uﬂ.ﬂ‘_;!_yﬂuﬂlu.lnE).ﬂhi)ﬂﬂ.ﬁ!anﬂ”a.bh’ﬂd.hw'ﬂﬂ.iL'ul.l.h
iy apgpan 4 el FA U LTS [ PRUIFIROLL ARO[ NP VI TP IE B TR
D Ny

AS B0y HE am} Lyl e Y1 0 (1l gpn RS8N B 400} rdpa A gy R

A0 A0 dnglya i Gty clplghuns

00 LT kS ol e oy 10 gadl bl path (on Sl JSS TN ) 2 188 1) La (g pinn gl ol Usmaall A Lillaad JAK
Atlen Oy ¥ 408y (o080 (e ot 15 st gl gD a5 Chamaid (A i e g 1 by sk
o g 0 et o (08 Lualls L gt g il Sl ol 2l At g8 g b dnad LBy Ly 8 o3 91 gy
ST dpnn dm (ol pdSal gioe oS 18] 1o puma b f L sy Ahgp sty Lk g} (A (e iyl L85 0 (0S0g 0350y

A gl gl Uy ) pasiaall Wa2iy 20 4B i 20 Lo

ol pufadl o el g0 procell gy uh Alaall ol il Al g L gl _ggimal Ly Lgg poll o 00 Ayl Al k) g
S Loy L 500 LK gl e i gl D o Sty

g 0] dnnd o Culg) o My ppasaty sllad f (26 0 Api NS ) yue Al ol gl b a0 g Sy 2T gy plls gy el
oy AN o g 0 g Shig gl gl LT e lelin (U 014 Aol Rpiins LS ) 30 A o (L puanlly ¢ slelincl o3
R N 0 5glad o Allias Al o damle il o 38 F Bl e A g bl o Sy Dkl o A bl e )

.;L,.uuaﬁmumu:.w,mmwauaﬂhuﬂmmmmmjm"s.hd,.n .
A 5l Lybatalt 35 0 daid 0ad Yom

Hamﬂwmwl,waﬁm%w,wwwmﬁﬁ .
S

13 o i slogul ] gmann] o g, sl Al iy bl 2 ) gt g 8 01 bl A e gliad
WJJ-L"Y‘uJ-“ﬂ“fd»J#HAmHﬁda‘qdﬁjﬂhh&lbq}ﬂ-\ﬂru-'-Ih::i-‘
il b Dhalh il el ] g 2 (e AT ikl Ll g 000 3t 2505 s 3 gty ) U 18] 5 pin
G e Lgle ymmall o3 (3 T sald A08 o UTIATd Al AHS b bl adet 098 1Y LY ) Jptond ol eigllall
Mool 26,80 1 it psm 0 g o8 Sl gl o chant 8 ol ey My s



-L

Sy AN
(L) (grse Lubtome 20,8) et Tiagh 20,00 e B ] (4Bamsl Cpplyol g0
) 1540 0 0 Angl e chom gl ot ol yiuns
e inanta L Lol L ML T W W JCN I T SO I S DRI
Al ol g5y g T 8 oY

L i o8 50 0 Al b okl 0 bl i 3 3 50 gl il B3N
Mgl o (DAL LARED 3 WLk 300 (A1, ke 3l g |

& 00y =By MRty Al il LDAAY ity Lt 300 48l gt 3 Lty Ly i) a2 L
<1 38 0 o B gy ARl 30 B e 2 S 0 (g ANE g1 BN

e 81 Ll g o Dk 8l Lo Lyt 2 1 3 m s il Rgaly (Y 30y o 1) 0 10
g Y 30 iy L s 3 s ol By Y Sled S
&Muaaﬂmuﬂw@uwmmﬂd-huuam.i-uuwufucwl
{W&@MM@@&W@J@Q%J}HNU*&’”

wipdy Mg cual Sk cmh g gl
{ariotl Sppudany) {oatstl Qupins

__'_.ﬁ#l,

gare glia g

S e

614 ) i 3
ARRR T Y FRT

F@W“x\ AVEEY Gt ¥
F e R i o oS IS
'ﬁ’\ At

[ %lt Pwdirageains | ] oTats v 2
\
e

mmsnn.\.mnnu} / s",e’

:b“‘\;\ . o \c;f:‘fsf/

=2 & Co, pyBt
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-\ P. O. Bax 1694 Kingdom of Sauci Arabia
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Building a better  Ragistration Number: 45
warking world Head Office - Riyadh

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wataniya Insurance Company — a Saudi Joint Stock Company (the “Company™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the related statement of income, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other
standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi organization for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA™) (referred to as
“IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia™).

Basis for jon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with professional code of
conduct and ethics, endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profedsional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 2 separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, a
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE

COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (CONTINUED)

Kev Audit Matters (continmed)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key aundit
matter

Valuation of ultimate claim liability arising from
insurance contracts

As at December 31, 2020, gross outstanding claims
and reserves including claims incurred but not
reported (IBNR) and premium deficiency reserve
(PDR) as stated in note 8, amounted to SAR 756.4
million.

The estimation of insurance contract liabilities
involves a significant degree of judgement. The
lisbilities are based on the best-estimate of the ultimate
cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the
reporting date, whether reported or not, together with
the related claims handling costs. Further, individual
outstanding claims are estimated by internal or
external loss adfusters when a claim has been initiated.
These estimates are reassessed during the various
stages of the claim processing cycle and are revised
based on changes in specific circumstances pertaining
to each claim,

The Company principally uses an external actuary
(“management's expert”) to provide them with the
estimate of such liabilities. A range of methods were
used to determine these provisions which were based
on number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating
to the expected settlement amount and settlement
patterns of claims.

Due to the estimation uncertainty and subjectivity
involved in the assessment of valuation of ultimate
claim liabilitics arising from insurance contracts, we
have considered this as a key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures:

s Understood, evaluated and tested key controls
around the claims handling and provision setting
processes;

e Performed substantive tests on the amounts
recorded for a sample of claims notified and paid;
including comparing the outstanding claims
amount to appropriate source documentation to
cvaluate the valuation of outstanding claim
Teserves;

e Evaluated the competence, capabilities end
objectivity of the management's expert based on
their professional qualifications and experience
and assessed their independence;

¢ Obtained sufficient audit evidence to assess the
integrity of data used as inputs into the actuarial
valuations, and tested on sample basis, the
accuracy of underlying claims data utilized by the
management's expert in estimating the IBNR by
comparing it to the accounting and other records;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE

COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (CONTINUED)

udi tte tinu

' Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

 Valuation of ultimate claim liability arising from
insurance contracts (continued)

Refer notes 3(c) to the financial statements for the
accounting policy adopted by the Company and note
2e(i) for the significant accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions involved in the initial
recognition and subsequent measurement of insurance
contract liabilities, Also, refer note 8 for movement in
outstanding claims, IBNR and PDR.

Challenged  management's methods  and
assumptions, through assistance of our internal
actuarial expert to understand and evaluate the
Company's actuarial practices and provisions
established and gained comfort over the actuarial
report issued by management's expert, by
performing the following:

i)

{1

(ifi)

Evaluated whether the Compeny’s zctuarial
methodologies were consistent with generally
accepted actuarial practices and with prior
years. We sought sufficient justification for
any significant differences;

Assessed key actuarial assumptions including
claims ratios and expected frequency and
severity of claims. We challenged these
assumptions by comparing them with our
expectations based on the Company's
historical experience, current trends and our
own industry knowledge; and

Reviewed the appropriateness of the
calculation methods and approach along with
the assumptions used and sensitivity analysis
performed.

Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
related disclosures in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE
COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information consists of the information included in the
Company’s 2020 annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appesrs to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS
as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies, the Company*s
By-laws and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatsment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance i.e. the Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

itorg’ e Al th cial en

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our cpinion. Reasonabie assurance
is @ high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will elways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstetements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, indjvidually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Internationsl Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE
COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (CONTINUED)

agiory Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stategients (continned)

o ldmﬁfymdmesstherhhofmamialmiumunentnfﬁmﬂnmcialmems,whad:erduetoﬁmdorm,deslgn
andperfomanditpmuedmsmmiwwﬂmerisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriste to
provideahsisforomopinim.ﬁeﬂskofnﬂdﬂeeﬁngama&ﬁdmishtqnmtmu]ﬁug from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, 8s frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentiona] omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in!hecﬁcumuncu,bunmfnrthepurpmofmdngmophimmthuﬂbcﬁvmsoﬂhe Company’s interns]
conrol,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used end the reasonableness of accounting estimatss and related
disclosures made by the management.

. Cmch:demthaapprcprinﬂmsofﬂnmmgement'susaofﬂ:e going concern bagis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obuined,wheﬂmamnterinlmoeminrye:dstsmhmdwwentsurmdiﬁomﬂutmaymstsimiﬂmt
dnubtontheCumpmy‘sabiﬁtytomﬁnwuagohgconcm.Ifwecmeh:dnﬂmtumatmialunwtaimyenim.wa
are required to draw attention in our suditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are } um,wmndityomophion.Owcmsmiommbaudmﬂmmditeﬁdmmommedupbﬁu
date of our suditors’ report. However, future ovents or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue ss 2
going concern.

. Evnhxmﬂnovorallpmemaﬁm,su-uctnremdcmtamoftheﬂnanclalmmm,indudingthedimloamu,md
whnﬂwmeﬁnmcidwmmrmmtﬂwmdulyhgmmmdmhammnwmmmﬂwum
presentation.

We eommlmimwithtlmechargedwiﬂxgovemmregarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur
andit.

Wealsoprovideﬂmuchngedwiﬁgommuwiﬂmsmmmtﬂmwehmcmpﬂdu&ﬂ:mlwmtﬂmmuimm
regixding independence, end to communicate with them all relationships end other matters that may reasonably be thought
1o bear on onr independence, and where applicable, related safepyards.

Fromihemﬁmmmnnmimedwiththmecbargedwiﬂlgovunme, we: determine those matters that were of most
aignﬂimseinﬂ:emditof&aﬂmmmudﬂlnmmtyeumdmthemfnrethchymditmm. We describe
thmmﬂtmhmmdﬁm’upMmlmhwmmgﬂaﬁmprwhdummlicdimlmmeubmﬁemmorwhm.in
extremely rare circumstances, we duuminethatnmmshou]dnotbecommmicuedhmmpmbecmetheadvme
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Ernst & Young & Co. PricewaterkouseCoopers
(Certified Public Accountants) (Certified Public Accountants)

R="

Mufaddal A. Ali
Certified Public Accountant
License Neo, 447

March 15,2021 G
Comresponding to Shaaban 2, 1442 H

Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
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Audit Committee’s Recommendation
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Translation

Date: 08/08/1442 AH
Corresponding to March 21, 2021 G

Attention: Gentlemen members of the Board of Directors respected
The National Insurance Company
Jeddah

With this, the Audit Committee reports that it has studied and reviewed the offers
for reviewing and auditing the activities and accounts of the company submitted
by the following institutions:

Externat Auditors ] Proposal

Ernst & Young 545,000 SAR |
El Sayed El Ayouty & Co | 350,000 SAR

PricewaterhouseCoopers | 535,000 SAR

Based on the aforementioned, the committee unanimously recommends
appointing PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernest and Young to undertake the tasks
of external auditing for the company for the second and third quarter of 2021,
annual financial statements for the fiscal year 2021 and the first quarter of 2022.

Sirajuddin Anwer Nedhal Radhwan Sami Athalabl
Audit Committee Chairman Member Member
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Capital Market Authority

Form (1) Nominee CV

_A] Nominee Personal Information

Name Tahir Mohammed Aldabbagh _
Nationality Saudi Arabia | Date of Birth | 01/07/1375H
' B) Academic Qualifications :
| # Degree | Major | Degree Date University -
1 | Bachelor's degree | Political Science | 1981 University of Michigan — USA
2 - - - =
C) Expertise B B
Period Experience Field
40 Years Management — Banking & Financial
Board Memberships in Other Companles . :
# | Company Name | Activity | Membership | Representation | Committee’s | Legal
B Classification Membership | Entity
"1 | Tamwilly International Financing | Non-Executive Persanal Audit Limited
Company L | Capacity Committee | Company
2 Mohammed Yousef | Trading | Non-Executive Personal - | Limited
- Naghi Group Capacity | Company |
3 Arabian Root ' Trading | Non-Executive Personal - Limited |
. Company Capacity Company
L4 = = - - - -
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Appendix

Following table summarizes the contracts In which Directors have a materlal interest.

Annual
No. Name of Party Name of Directors | Nature of Contract Pcz::;:: Value
i SR'000
L | EAluffall & Brothers x Amin Al Afif Fonts and other | Annual s 845
Company * Falsal Charara e A:.‘f:dusl ve) 2020 ‘
Service Level
2| EAJuffalig Bros,~ISC o AmRAAM | agreementfor- | Al | o,
Falsal Charara Services (VAT) 2020
- Facultative 1,801
Premlums
- Facultative
3. | SNICInsCo | AminrATARE Commission Annual 285
" Falsal Charara - Facultative Clalms 2020
Recoverad
295
« insurance Annual 4,038
4, Saudi Cement Company = Amin Al Afifi Premlums 2030
- Clalms Pald 254
- [Insurance
5. Naghl Group of Companies = Tahir Al Dabbagh Premlums A;;;: : :‘;;:
« Clalms Paid '
& All above Contracts had no preferentlal conditlons.
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Emst & Young & Co. (Certified Public Accountants) Registration No, 45/11/323

Genaral Partnership C.R. No. 4020276644

zng'l Road Tower, 13:'MFIﬁ - 0

Ing Abdul Aziz Road (Malek Road) :  +866 12 221 840

g & better P.O. Box 1984 Fax: +868 12221 B575

Jeddah 21441

Kingdom of Saud| Arabla ey.ksa@sa.ey.com

Head Office -- Riyach ay.com/mana

LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) '

We have carried out a limited assurance engagement in order to state whether anything has
come to our attention that causes us to believe that the subject matter detailed below
(“Subject Matter"), has not been reported and presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with the applicable criteria mentioned below.

Subject Matter:

The subject of the limited assurance engagement is related to the declaration as attached
in (Appendix 1), which was prepared by the Chalrman of the Board of Directors (the “BOD")
of Wataniya Insurance Company (the “Company”) to be submitted to the Ordinary General
Assembly Meeting, in respect of the transactions and contracts in which any of the members
of the BOD of the Company has a direct or indrect personal interest, occurred during the
year ended 31 December 2020, in order to comply with the requirements of Article (71) of
the Companies’ Law.

Applicable Criteria;

1, Article (71) of the Companies’ Law issued by Ministry of Commerce (“MOC™)
(1437H -2015).

2. Declaration submitted by the Chairman of the BOD to the Ordinary General
Assembly Meeting (Appendix 1).

3. The declarations submitted by the members of the Company’s BOD in respect to the
transactions and contracts in which any of the members of the Company's BOD has
a direct or indirect personal interest.

4. The Company’s accounting records for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Management Responsibllity:
The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the

Subject Matter above in accordance with the applicable criteria and Is also responsible for
the selection of methods used in the applicable criteria. Further, the Company's
management is responsible for applying internal controls relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the information stated in the Subject Matter above that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applylng appropriate criteria;
maintaining adequate records and making estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (continued)

Our Responsibllity:

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance conclusion on the Subject Matter above
based on our assurance engagement conducted In accordance with International Standard
on Assurance Engagements (3000) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Revlews of Historical Financial Information” endorsed In the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and
the terms and conditions for this engagement as agreed with the Company's management.

Qur procedures were designed to obtain a limited level of assurance on which to base our
conclusion, and, as such, do not provide all of the evidence that would be required to provide
a reasonable level of assurance. The procedures performed depend on our professional
judgement including the risk of material misstatement of the Subject Matter, whether due
to fraud or error. While we considered the effectiveness of internal controls when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our engagement was not designed to
provide assurance on effectlveness of those controls.

Independence and Quallty Controls:

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (“IESBA") which was founded on fundamental principles of integrity,
objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional
behaviour.

Our firm applies International Standard on Quality Control (1) and accordingly maintains a
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal
and regulatory requirements.

Summary of Procedures Performed:

The procedures performed in a limlted assurance engagement vary In nature and timing
from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Conseguently,
the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially iower
than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement
been performed.

As per the engagement letter, our procedures included, but were not limited to:

* Obtaining the BOD Chairman's declaration that includes the financial information
about the transactions and contracts in which any of the members of the Company's
BOD has a direct or indirect personal Interest, occurred during the year ended 31
December 2020, according to the requirements of Article (71) of the Companies Law
(Appendix 1).
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LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATANIYA INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (continued)

mary of Procedures Performed (contin

* Reviewing the BOD resolution that indicate the BOD member's notification to the
BOD on the transactions and contracts for the year ended 31 December 2020.

* Obtaining the declarations submitted by the Company's BOD in respect to the
transactions and contracts in which any of the members of the Company’s BOD has
a direct or indirect personal interest.

* Comparing the financial information in Appendix 1 to the Company's accounting
records for the year ended 31 December 2020,

Limited Assurance Concluslon:

Based on our limited assurance procedures performed and evidence obtained, nothing has
come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Subject Matter above has not been
reported and presented fairly, in all materlal aspects, in accordance with the applicable
criteria.

Other Matters:
The attached (Appendix 1) has been stamped by us for Identification purposes only.

for Ernst & Young (Chartered Accountants)

f)_.,_,-..nls,...,,_ .
g ,\.} EESTRS

———hip (57—
Hussain Saleh Asiri -'{ E? Vg

Certified Public Accountant R

License No. 414 W N T e
T, e .

Jeddah: 5 Shabaan 1442H ez umc 2

18 March 2021
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Appendix 1

Following table summarizes the contracts In which Directors have a material interest.

‘ Perlod | Annual
Nature of of Value
No. Name of Party Nanie of Dlrectors Contract | Contract | SR"000
' Rents and other
charges for
EA Juffali & Brothers = Amin Alafifi Jeddah Annual
1. | Company = Faisal Charara (VAT Inclusive] | 2020 | 3848
Service Leval
= Amin Alafifi Agreement for IT- Annual
2. E.A. Juffali& Bros. — I1SC = Faisal Charara Services (VAT) 2020 1.209 !
' 1,801
- Facuitative
Premiums
- Facultative 295
Commission
» Amin Alafifi - Facultative Annual
3. SNIC Ins Co » Faigal Charara | Claims Recoverad 2020 295
- Insurance 4,038
Premiums Annual
4, Saudi Cement Company = Amin Al Afifi - Claims Paid 2020 254 |
- Insurance
Premiums Annual 8,775
| 5. | Naghi Group of Companies | = Tahir Aldabbagh | - Claims Paid 2020 6.038
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CERTIFICATION

Mohamad Al Amri Translation, Jeddah
Saudi Arabla, which is licensed as an
authorized transtator by virtue of License
No. 707 hereby certifias that, the transiation
of the document / documents annexed
hereto which are stamped for Identifica-
tion only is a complete and true transia-
tion without any resposibility for the
contents thereof,
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On agreements and deeds before the notary and official authorities, as well as
agreements of loans, guarantees, warranties and deeds for the sale and purchase
of real estate, issuance of legal authorizations on behalf of the company, sale,
purchase, emptying, acceptance, receipt, delivery, renting and leasing, receiving,
payment, opening accounts and credits, withdrawing and depositing with banks,
issuing guarantees to banks, funds, and governmental financing institutions, and
signing on all papers, order bonds, checks, all commercial papers, documents and
all banking transactions.

Article Nineteen: Rewarding of Board Members:

The minimum annual reward for the chairman and members of the board of
directors shall be (120,000 Riyals) one hundred twenty thousand Saudj riyals, and
the maximum amount is (500,000 Riyals) five hundred thousand Saudi riyals
annually for their membership in the board of directors and their participation in
its work, including addltional bonuses in the event the member participates in any
committee From the committees emanating from the Board of Directors.

In the event that the company achieves profits, a percentage equivalent to (10%)
of the remalning net profit may be distributed after deducting the reserves
decided by the General Assembly in implementation of the provisions of the
Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law and after distributing a profit to
the shareholders of not less than {5%) of the company's paid-up capital, Provided
that the entitlement to this bonus Is proportional to the number of sessions that
the member attends, and any estimate that is contrary to that shall be void,

in all cases, the total reward and financlal or in-kind benefits and rewards that a
member of the Board of Directors gets does not exceed an amount of (500,000
Riyals) five hundred thousand riyals annually.

The maximum allowance for attending the sessions of the Council and Its
committees shall be (5000 riyals) five thousand riyals for each session, excluding
travel and accommodation expenses.

Payment will made for each member of the board, including the chief, the value

of the actual expenses they incur in order to attend meetings of the board or
}

e,
PRI




committees emanating from the board of directors, including travel,
accommodation and subsistence expenses.

The report of the Board of Directors to the Ordinary General Assembly must
Include a comprehensive statement of all remunerations, expenses allowances
and other benefits that Board members earned during the fiscal year. It should
also include a statement of what members of the council received as workers or
administrators or what they received in return for technical or administrative
work or consultations, and it should also include a statement of the number of
sessions and the number of sessions attended by each member from the date of
the last meeting of the General Assembly.

Ariicle Twenty: Powers of the Chief, Vice Chief, Managing Director and
Secretary:

The board of directors appoints a Chief and a vice Chief from among its members.
He appoints a Chief Executive Officer, and he may appoint a Managing Director,
and it Is not permissible to combine the position of Chief of the Board of Directors
with any executive position in the company, and the Chief of the Board of
Directors has the right to sign for the company and Implement the Board’s
decisions. The Chief of the board of directors is responsible for representing the
company before the courts and arbitration bodies
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Ministry of Commerce

M/S, Wataniya Insurance Company
After Greetings

Pursuant to our letter in the e-mail received by the administration on 02/03/2021
and with reference to the e-mall received by us on 14/03/2021 regarding the
application for the inclusion of a proposal to amend the articles
(1,3,4,7,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,24,25,26,27,28,30,32,33,35,36,39,41,43
/45,49,50) and chapters 10 and 11 have been deleted and their items added to
Chapter 9, according to the annex to this letter No. 66611 in the agenda of the
extraordinary general assembly of the company for the approval of Its
shareholders in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors.

I would like to state that the administration has no objection to presenting the
proposed amendments to the statute for the extraordinary general assembly as
soon as it convenes, provided that the ministry Is subsequently provided with a
copy of the assoclation’s documents and decisions to complete the necessary
legal system and announce the decisions on the ministry’s website at the link
(pd.mci.gov.sa) according to the text of the fifth paragraph of Article 94 of the
Companies Law.

Thanks and best regards,

Director General of the Ministry branch in Makkah Region
Signed on 18/03/2021

Eng. Abdul [lah bin Ali bin Mushait

for / Adnan bin Ahmed Al-Hamidi
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Before the amendment
Article One: Establishment:

Shall be incorporated in accordance with the provisions
of the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law
and its Implementing Regulations, the Companies Law,
the Financial Market Law and Its Implementing
Regulations, and the Company's Articles of Association,
a Saudi joint stock company shall be established among
the shareholders of the shares which provisions are set
out below.

FRTEPEE

| After the amendment
Article One: Establishment:
Shall be established in accordance with the provisions
of the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law,
the Companies Law, the Financial Market Law and its
implementing regulations, and the Company’s Articles
of Association, and it shall be a Saudi Joint Stock
Company among the owners of shares whose
.provisions are set out below

Article Three: The Company’s Objectives:
To carrying out cooperative insurance business and ail
that is related to these businesses from reinsurance,
agencies, representation, correspondence, or
mediation, and the company has the right to carry out
all the work that needs to be done to investigate its
purposes, whether in the field of insurance or
investment of its money, and to own and move fixed and
cash funds, sell or exchange them Or leasing it directly
or through companies it establishes or buys or in
partnership with other bodies, and the company carries
out its activities in accordance with the provisions of the
Cooperative Insurance Companles Control Law and its
implementing regulations and the regulations and rules
in force in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and after
obtaining the necessary licenses from the competent
authorities, if any.

Article Four: Participation and Ownership in
Companies:
The company may establish limited liability companies
or closed joint stock companies (provided that the
capital is not less than (5) five million Saudi riyals). It may
also own shares and stakes in other existing companies
or merge with them and have the right to participate
with others in establishing joint stock companies or With
limited liability provided that the companies established

by it

Article Three: The Company’s Objectives:

To carry out cooperative insurance business in the
General Insurance Branch and Protection and savings
Insurance .The company has the right to carry out all
the work that achieve its objectives, and the company
carries out its activities in accordance with the
Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law and its
implementing regulations, the provisions issued by the
Corporation, and the regulations and rules in force in
the 'Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and after obtaining the
necessary licenses from the competent authorities, if

any.

Article Four: Particlpatlon and Ownership in
Companies:

The company may establish companies with limited
liability, or shareholding from cne person. It may also
own shares and chickpeas in other existing companies
or merge with them and it has the right to participate
with others in establishing joint stock or limited liability
companies - provided that The companies established
by the company or which it participates in or merges
with it engage in similar business




| Before the amendment

| After the amendment

or participate in it or merge with it, it engages in
activities that are suspicious of its business or financial
business, or that helps it achieve its purpose - after
fulfilling the requirements of the regulations and
instructions followed in this regard, and after obtaining
the approval of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency.

| With its business or financial business or that helps it
achieve its purpose - after fulfilling the requirements of
the regulations and instructions followed in this regard,
and after obtaining the approval of the Saudi Arabian

Monetary Agency

Article Seven: The Company's Investments:

The company invests what it collects from the insured
and shareholders ‘funds in the company in accordance
with the rules established by the Board of Directors and
in a manner that does not conflict with the Cooperative
Insurance Company’s Control Law and its implementing
regulations and other relevant regulations and
instructions issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary
Agency or any other party. Related

| Article 12: Shares Trading:

Shares subscribed by the founders may not be traded
except after publishing the financial statements for two
fiscal years, each of which is not less than (12) twelve
months from the date of the company’s incorporation.
The bonds of these shares to be marked in order to
indicate their type, date of incorporation of the company
and the period during which It is prohibited to trade
them; however, it is permissible during the prohibition
period the transfers of ownership of shares in
accordance with the provisions of the sale of rights from
one of the founders to another founder or the heirs of
one of the founders in the event of its death to a third
party or In the event of execution on the funds of the
insolvent or bankrupt founder, provided that the priority
of owning those shares is given to the other founders.
The provisions of this article are enforced on what the
founders have subscribed to in the event of a capital
increase before the ban period expires.

Article Seven: The Company’s Investments:

The company Invests what it accumulates from the
insured funds

And the shareholders in the company shall be in
accordance with the rules established by the Board of
Directors and in a manner that does not conflict with
the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law and
its implementing regulations and rules and provisions
issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency or any
other related party.

' Article 12: Shares Trading:

1 - Shares subscribed by the founders may not be
traded except after Publishing the financial statements
for two fiscal years, each of which is not less than (12)
twelve months from the date of the company’s
incorporation, and after obtaining the approval of the
Authority. The bonds of these shares to be marked in
order to indicate their type, date of incorporation of the
company and the period during which it is prohibited to

trade them.

2- It is permissible during the prohibition period to
transfer the ownership of shares according to the
provisions of the sale of rights from one of the founders
to another founder or from the heirs of one of the
founders in the event of his death to a third party or in
the case of execution on the funds of the insolvent or
bankrupt founder, provided that the priority of owning
these shares is given to the other founders.

3- The provisions of this article shall apply to what the

founders subscribe in the event of a capital increase
before the ban period has passed.

Article Thirteen: Capltal Increase:

Article Thirteen: Capital Increase:




Before the amendment ]

After the amendment

The extraordinary general assembly is to decide the |
increase of the company's capital - after the approval of
the competent authorities - and on the condition that
the capital has been paid in full. The shareholder who
owns the share - at the time of the General Assembly’s
decision to approve the increase in the capital - has
priority in subscribing for new shares issued in exchange
for cash shares, and they inform them of their priority -
if any, by publishing in a daily newspaper or by informing
them by registered mail of the decision to increase the
capital, the terms of the subscription, its duration and
date of its beginning and its end. The extraordinary
general assembly has the right to suspend the priority
right for shareholders to subscribe to an increase in
capital in exchange for cash shares, or to give priority to
non-shareholders In cases it deems appropriate in the
interest of the company. The shareholder has the right
to sell or waive the pre-emption right during the period
from the time of the issuance of the General Assembly’s
decision to approve the capital increase to the last day
for subscribing for new shares associated with these
rights, In accordance with the controls laid down by the
competent authority.

1- The extraordinary general assembly may decide to |
increase the capital of the company after the approval of
the Authority and the Capital Market Authority, provided
that the capital has been fully paid. It is not required that
the capital be paid in full if the unpaid portion of the capital
belongs to shares issued in exchange for converting debt
instruments or financing assets into shares and has not
expired after the prescribed period for converting them
into shares.
2- The extraordinary general assembly in all cases may
allocate the shares issued when increasing the capital or
part thereof to the employees of the company and its
subsidiary companies or some of them, or any of that.
Shareholders may not exercise the right of priority when
the company issues the allocated shares for employees.
3-The shareholder who owns the share - at the time of the
General Assembly's decision approving the capital
increase the priority in subscribing to new shares issued in
exchange for cash shares, and these will be informed of
their priority - if any, by publishing in a daily newspaper or
informing them by registered mail of the capital increase
decision and the terms, duration, start and end of the
subscription.
4. The extraordinary general assembly has the right to
suspend the priority right for shareholders to subscribe to
the capital increase in exchange for cash dividends, or to
give priority to non-shareholders in cases it deems
appropriate for the company's interest.
5- Likewise, the shareholder has the right to sell or waive
the pre-emption right during the period from the time of
the issuance of the General Assembly's decision to
approve the capital increase to the last day for
subscription to new shares related to these rights, in
accordance with the controls laid down by the Capital
Market Authority.

Before the amendment

After the amendment

Article 14: Reducing the Capital:

| Article Fourteen: Capital Reduction:




| of the Extraordinary General Assembly to decide to
reduce the capital if it exceeds the company's need or if
it incurs losses - after the approval of the competent
authorities that the paid-up capital of the insurance
company after reducing the capital is not less than (100)
one hundred million riyals. The paid-up capital of the
reinsurance company or the insurance company that
carries out at the same time reinsurance business is not
less than (200) two hundred million riyals, and the
reduction decision is not issued until after reading a
special report prepared by the auditor on the reasons
directed to him, the liabilities of the company and the
The effect of the reduction in these liabilities. If the
capital reduction was a result of an increase in the
company's need, the creditors were invited to express
their objections within (30) sixty days from the date of
publishing the reduction decision in a daily newspaper
distributed in the region where the company’s head
office Is. If one of the creditors objects and submits his
documents to the company on the aforementioned
date, the company must pay him his debt if it is
immediately or provide him with a guarantee sufficient
to pay it if it is later

Article fifteen: the management of the company:

The management of the company is undertaken by a
board of directors of no less than (5) five members and
no more than (11} eleven members elected by the
ordinary general assembly for a period not exceeding
three years, and the composition of the board of
directors must reflect an appropriate representation of
Independent Members. In all cases, the number of
independent members of the Council shall not be less
than two members or one third of the members of the
Council, whichever is greater. As an exception to this,
the constituent assembly appoints the members of the
first board of directors for a period not exceeding (3)
three years starting from the date on which the Ministry
of Commerce and Investment declares to establish the
company

1 - The Extraordinary General Assembly may decide to
reduce the capital

Money if it exceeds the company's need or if it suffers
losses after the approval of the Corporation and the
Capital Market Authority, provided that the paid-up capital
of the insurance company after reducing the capital is not
less than (100) one hundred million riyals, and the paid-up
capital of the reinsurance company or the Insurance
company that engages in At the same time, reinsurance
works for (200) two hundred million riyals. The reduction
decision is not issued except after reading a special report
prepared by the auditor on the reasons Due to him, the
liabilities of the company, and the impact

Reduction in these liabilities

2- If the reduction of the capital was a result of an increase
in it over a need

The company, the creditors must be called upon to express
their objections within (60) sixty days from the date of
publishing the reduction decision in a daily newspaper
distributed in the region in which the company’'s head
office is located. If one of the creditors objected and
presented to the company | His documents are on the
aforementioned date, and the company must pay him his
debt if it is immediate, or provide him with sufficient
security to fulfill it if it is postponed.

" Article fifteen: The management of the company:

The management of the company shall be undertaken by
a board of directors consisting of {(10) ten members
elected by the ordinary general assembly for a period not
exceeding three years, and the composition of the board
of directors shall be adequately represented by the
independent members. In all cases, the number of
independent members of the Council shall not be less than
two members or one third of the members of the Council,
whichever is greater. As an exception to this, the
constituent assembly appoints the members of the first
board of directors for a period not exceeding (3) three
years starting from the date on which the Ministry of
Commerce and Investment declares to establish the
company




| Before the amendment

| After the amendment

Article Sixteen: Termination of Board Membership:
The membership of the Board of Directors ends with the
end of the term of appointment, resignation, or death,
or if the Board of Directors proves that the member has
violated his duties in a way that harms the interest of the
company, provided that this is accompanied by the
approval of the Ordinary General Assembly, or with the
termination of his membership in accordance with any
system or instructions in effect in In the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, or if he ruled a month of bankruptcy or
insolvency, or submitted a request for settlement with
his clients, stopped paying his debts or became
unconscious, or became mentally ill, or | If it is proven
that he has committed an act of breach of trust or
morals, or was convicted of forgery. Nevertheless, the
Ordinary General Assembly may at all times dismiss all
or some of the members of the Board of Directors
without prejudice to the right of the member

Is isolated from the company by claiming

By compensation, If the dismissal occurred for an
unacceptable reason or at an inappropriate time, and a
member of the board of directors may retire, provided
that this is at an appropriate time and that he is not
responsible before the company for the damages
resulting from the retirement.

Article Sixteen: Termination of Board Membership:
Board membership ends with the end of the board
session, resignation, death, or absenteeism from three
meetings within one year without a legitimate and
acceptable excuse, or If it is proven to the Board of
Directors that the member has violated his duties in a way
that harms the interest of the company, provided that this
is accompanied by the approval of the Ordinary General
Assembly Or if his membership has expired in accordance
with any system or instructions in force in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, or if he is declared bankrupt or insolvent, or
submitted a request for settlement with his creditors, or
has stopped paying his debts, or has suffered a mental
illness or a physical disability that may lead to the
member’s inability to do so. In his turn completely, or it Is
proven that he committed an act that violates trust and
morals, or was convicted of forgery according to a final
judgment. It is not permissible for the Ordinary General
Assembly at all times to dismiss all or some of the
members of the Board of Directors without prejudice to
the right of the dismissed member towards the company
to claim compensation if the dismissal occurred for an
unacceptable reason or at an inappropriate time. 3- If a
member of the board resigns and has notes on the
company's performance, he must submit a written
statement thereof to the chairman of the board of
directors, and this statement must be presented to the
members of the board of directors 4- The Saudi Arabian
Monetary Agency must be informed Upon the resignation
of any member of the Council or the termination of his
membership for any reason except '
—

. Before the amendment

After the amendment

| Article Seventeen: Vacant Position in the board:

| Article 17: The vacant position in the board:




In the event that the position of one of the members of
the board of directors becomes vacant, the board could
appoint - temporarily. A member of the vacant position
who has sufficient experience and after obtaining the
non-objection of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency
and without considering the arrangement in obtaining
votes in the General Assembly through which the Board
of Directors was elected, and must inform the Financial
Market Authority of this within five (5) five days Actions
from the date of appointment and this appointment
must be presented to the Ordinary General Assembly at
its first meeting, and the new member completes the
term of his file only, and a decision by the competent
authority may Invite the Ordinary General Assembly to
convene In the event that the number of members of the
Board of Directors falls below the minimum validity of its
meeting, and it must be informed The Saudi Arabian
Monetary Agency upon the resignation of any member
of the board or termination of his membership for any
reason other than the end of the session of the board
within (5) five working days from the date of leaving the
job and taking into account the relevant disclosure
requirements..

In the event the position of a member of the board of
directors becomes vacant, the board may appoint
temporarily. A member of the vacant position who has
sufficient experience and after obtaining the non-
objection of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency and
without considering the arrangement in obtaining votes in
the General Assembly in which the Board of Directors was
elected | Through it, the Ministry of Commerce and
Investment, as well as the Financial Market Authority,
must be notified within five (5) five working days from the
date of appointment, and this appointment must be
presented to the Ordinary General Assembly at its first
meeting, and the new member completes the term of his
predecessor only.

Article 18: Powers of the Board:

Taking Into account the powers established for the
General Assembly, the Board of Directors shall have the
widest powers in managing the company in a way that
achieves its purpose. it also has the power, within the
limits of its competence, to delegate one or more of its
members or from others to carry out certain work or
actions - without It contradicts the relevant laws and
regulations, and the Board of Directors may, for
example, not be limited to, represent the company in its
relations with third parties, government and private
| agencies, and before

Article 18: Powers of the Board:

- Subject to the powers established for the General
Assembly, the Board of Directors shall have the broadest
powers in managing the company in a way that achieves
its objectives, with the exception of what is excluded in a
special text in the Companies Law or this Regulation in
terms of acts or acts of interference | In the jurisdiction of
the general assembly, (the board of directors shall have
the broadest powers In managing the company to achieve
its purpose, and within the limits of its competence it may
delegate one or more of its members or

Before the amendment

After the amendment




All Sharia courts, the Board of Grievances, labor offices,
workers, higher and primary committees, settlement of
labor disputes, the Commercial Paper Commission, all
other judicial committees, arbitration bodies, civil rights,
police departments, chambers of commerce and
industry, all companies, institutions, banks, commercial
banks, money houses, all funds and governmental
financing institutions of various names and
specializations, and other lenders and the Council The
right to acknowledge, demand, defend, plead, litigate,
surrender, reconcile, accept judgments and deny them,
arbitration, request execution of judgments and their
objections, adjudicate what happens from execution,
absolve the company's debtors of their obligations, and
enter into tenders, sale, purchase and mortgage of real
estate. The Council also has the right to contract and sign
in the name of the company and on its behalf on all types
of contracts, documents and documents, including
without limitation contracts for the establishment of
companies in which the company participates with all its
amendments and annexes, amendment decisions, and
signing of agreements and instruments before the
notary and official authorities, as well as agreements of
loans, guarantees, guarantees and instruments for sale
Purchase of real estate, issuance of legal agencies on
behalf of the company, procurement, emptying, stating,
receiving, dellvery, renting, leasing, arresting, payment,
opening accounts and credits, withdrawing and

From a third party in carrying out a specific act or business |

- as long as it does not contradict | With the relevant laws
and regulations. The board of directors, for example, but
not limited to, may represent the company in its refations
with others, government and private agencies, civil rights,
police departments, chambers of commerce and industry,
all companies, institutions, banks, commercial banks,
money houses, all funds and government financing
institutions of various names and specializations, and
other lenders. And absolving the debtors of the company
of their liabilities and entering into tenders, buying, selling
and mortgaging real estate. The council has the right to
contract and sign in the name of the company and on its
behalf on the | All types of contracts, documents and
documents, including without limitation contracts for the
establishment of companies in which the company
participates with

All its amendments, appendices, amendment decisions, |

and signing of agreements and instruments before the
notary and official authorities, as well as loan agreements,
guarantees, guarantees and sukuk for the sale and
purchase of real estate and the issuance of legal agencies
on behalf of the company. Selling, buying, emptying,
accepting, receiving, delivering, investing, leasing,
receiving, paying and opening accounts | Credits,
withdrawals, deposits with banks, issuance of guarantees
to banks, funds and government financing institutions, and
signing of all papers, order bonds, checks, and all |

depositing with banks, issuing guarantees to banks, | Commercial papers, documents and all banking

funds and government financing institutions, signing all
papers, order documents, checks, all commercial
papers, documents and all banking transactions

transactions} - within the limits of his competence - to
authorize one or mere of its members or from a third party
to conduct a specific business or business in a manner that
does not conflict with the relevant laws and regulations. 7-
The Board of Directors may contract loans of any duration,
or sell or mortgage the company's assets, sell or mortgage
the company's business, or absolve the company's debtors
from their liabiiities, unless this statute includes or is
issued by the Ordinary General Assembly restricting the

| powers of the Board of Directors in this rezard.




Before the amendment

After the amendment

Article NIneteen: Remuneration for Board Members:
The minimum annual remuneratlon for the Chairman
and members of the Board of Directors shall be {120,000
Saudi Riyals) (one hundred twenty thousand Saudi riyals)
and the maximum amount is (500,000,000 riyals) five
hundred thousand Saudi riyals annually in exchange for
their membership in the board of directors and their
participation in its work, including additional
remuneration In the event that the member participates
in any of the committees emanating from the board.

In the event that the company achieves profits, a
percentage may be distributed Equivalent to (10%) of
the remaining net profit after deducting reserves Which
was decided by the General Assembly in implementation
of the provisions of the Cooperative Insurance
Companies Control Law and after distributing a wind to
the shareholders of not less than (5%) of the company's
paid-up capital, provided that the entitlement of this
remuneration s proportional to the number of sessions
attended by the member, and every estimate that
violates this is null and void.

In all cases, the total remuneration and financial or in-
kind benefits and rewards that a member of the Board
of Directors gets shall not exceed an amount of
5,000,000 riyals (five hundred thousand riyals per year).
The maximum allowance for attending the sessions of
the Council and its committees shall be (5000 riyals) five
thousand riyals for each session, not inclusive. Travel
and accommeodation expenses.

Each member of the board, including the chairman of
the board, shall be paid the value of the actual expenses
they make in order to attend the meetings of the board
or the committees emanating from the board of
directors, including travel, accommodation and
subsistence expenses.

The report of the board of directors must include the
general assembly Material on a comprehensive
statement of all that was obtained by members of the
Council Management during the financial year of
bonuses, favors and other benefits. it should also include
a statement of what members of the council received as
workers or administrators, or what they received in
return for technical or administrative works or
consultations. It should also include a statement of the
number of Council sessions and the number of sessions
attended by each member from the date of the last

meeting of the General Assembly

Article Nineteen: Remuneration for Board Members:

and Remuneration Capital with the Chairman and the
Managing Director

1- The remuneration of the members of the Board of
Directors shall be a certain amount or an allowance
Attendance about sessions, benefits in kind, or a certain
percentage of net profits, and it is permissible to combine
two or more of these benefits.

2- If the bonus is a certain percentage of the company's

' profits, then no percentage may exceed (10%) of the net

profits, after deducting the reserves declded by the General
Assembly in implementation of the provisions of the
Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law, the
Companies Law and this Law, and after distributing a profit
to the shareholders of not less than (5%) of the company's
paid-up capital, Provided that the entitlement to this bonus
is proportional to the number of sessions that the member
attends, and any estimate to the contrary shall be void.

3- In all cases, the total remuneration and financial or in-
kind benefits and rewards that a member of the Board of
Directors gets does not exceed an amount of five hundred
thousand riyals annually (except for the members of the
audit committee}, in accordance with the controls set by
the Capital Market Authority.

4- The report of the Board of Directors to the Ordinary
General Assembly must include a comprehensive insult to
all that the members of the Board of Directors received
during the fiscal year in terms of remuneration, expenses
allowance and other benefits. It should also include a
statement of what members of the council received as
workers or administrators, or what they received in return
for technical or administrative work or consultations, and it
should also include a statement of the number of council
sessions and the number of sessions attended by each
member from the date of the last meeting of the General
Assembly.




| Article Twenty: The Powers of the President, the
Deputy, the Managing Director, and the Secretary of
the Board:

The Board of Directors shall appoint from among its
members a Chairman and Vice President. An executive
president is appointed, and he may appoint a managing
director. It is not permissible to combine the position of
the chairman of the board of directors with any
executive position in the company, and the chairman of
the board of directors has the right to sign for the
company and implement the decisions of the board. The
chairman of the board of directors is authorized to
represent the company before the courts, arbitration
bodies and others, and the chairman of the board of
directors may, by a written decision, delegate some of
his powers to other members of the board or from third
parties to carry out specific work or work, and the board
of directors determines the salaries, allowances and
bonuses for each of the board chairman and the
managing director. In accordance with what is stipulated
in Article (12) of this bylaw. The board of directors must
appoint a secretary. The councilor may also appoint one
or more counselors for him in the various affairs of the
company, and the board shall determine their
remuneration. The term of the head does not increase
The Board, his Deputy, the Managing Director and the
Secretary of the Board of Directors are members of the
Board of Directors for the duration of each of them.in
the Board, and they may be re-elected, and the Board at
any time may dismiss them or any of them without
prejudice to the right of the dismissed person to
compensation if the dismissal took place for an unlawful
reasonorat an inappropriate time the title was modified
Item only)

" Article Twenty Powers of the Chairman of the Board of

Directors and Duration His membership:
as well as the membership of the deputy, the managing
director, and the secretary The secret The board of

directors appoints from among its members a chairman |

and a vice president and appoints an executive president,
and he may appoint a delegated member, and it is not
permissible to combine the position of the chairman of the
board of directors with any executive position in the
company, and the chairman of the board of directors has
the right to sign for the company and implement the
decisions of the board and the chairman of the board of
directors is competent to represent the company before
The judiciary, arbitration tribunals and third parties, and
the chairman of the board of directors may, by written
decision, delegate some of his powers to other members
of the board or from third parties to carry out specific work
or actions. The board of directors determines | Salaries,
allowances, and bonuses for the Chairman and the
Member Delegated according to what is stipulated in
Article (19) of this bylaw. The board of directors is free to
appoint a secretary for the board. The board may also
appoint one or more counselors in the various affairs of
the company, and the board shall determine their
remuneration. The term of the chairman, his deputy, the
managing director, and the secretary of the board member
shall not exceed the term of each of them in the council.
Appropriate. Item name has only been modified)




Article Twenty-One: Board Meetings:
The board meets in the head office of the company at
the Invitation of its chairman, and the chairman of the
board must call the meeting whenever two of the
members request it, and the invitation must be
documented in the way the board sees it. Council
meetings are held periodically and whenever needed,
provided that the number of annual council meetings is

not less than (4) so that there Is at least one meeting |

Article Twenty-one: Board meetings:

The council meets at the invitation of its chairman, and the
council chairman must call the meeting whenever two of
the members so request, and the invitation must be
documented in the way the council sees i, and the
council’s meetings are held periodically and whenever the
need arises, provided that the number of meetings is not
reduced. The annual council has about (4} 'meetings, so
that there is at least one meeting each Three months.

every three months. |

| Article Twenty-Two: A Board Meeting Quorum: | Article Twenty-Two: A Board Meeting Quorum:
The meeting of the Board shall not be valid unless it is | 1- A Board meeting is not valid unless it is attended by
attended by (two thirds) of the members by themselves | {five) members, provided that the number of members
or by proxy, provided that the number of the members | attending is (at least three members)
are present by themselves {at least four members, | 2- if the necessary conditions for a Board meeting are not
including an independent member, and the member | met due to the lack of the number of its members below
may delegate another member to attend the Board's | the minimum as stipulated in this bylaw, the rest of the
meetings in voting in them. By the majority of the | members must call the Ordinary General Assembly to
opinions of the attending members or their | convene within sixty days, to elect the necessary number
representatives, and when the opinions are equal, the | of members.
side with which the session chair voted is more likely. | 3- it is permissible, by decision of the Capital Market
The Board of Directors at its first meeting following it. | Authority, to call the Ordinary General Assembly to
convene in the event that the number of Board members
falls below the minimum validity of its meeting
4- |t is not permissible for 2 member of the Board of
Directors to delegate someone else to attend the meeting.
Exception from this, a member of the Board of Directors
may delegate to other members from him

5- Board decisions are issued by the majority of opinions
of the attending members or representatives therein, and
when opinions are equal, the side that The chairperson of
the session voted with him

6- The board of directors may issue decisions in urgent
matters presenting it to the members scattered, unless
one of the members requests - in writing - the council
meeting for deliberation, and these decisions are
| presented to the council at its first subsequent meeting




Article T Twenty-Four: Agreem;r_lts and Contracts:

The company, after obtaining the non-objectlon of the
Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency, has the right to
conclude an agreement to manage technical services
with one or more companies qualified in the field of
insurance. Board members may enter into insurance
contracts with the company in which they have an
interest, provided that the Chairman of the Board of
Directors provides the General Assembly with the details
of those insurance contracts. A member of the board of
directors shall inform the board of his direct or indirect
interest In the business and contracts that are made for
the account of the company, and this notification shall
be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. This member
may not participate in voting on the decision issued in
this regard by the Board of Directors and the
shareholders' assemblies. The chairman of the board of
directors informs the ordinary general assembly when it
is convened of the business and contracts in which one
of the board members has a direct or indirect interest in
it, and the notification is accompanied by a special
report from the company's external auditor. If a member
of the board fails to disclose his interest, the company or
everyone in the interest may claim before the
competent judicial authority to nullify the contract or
oblige the member to pay any profit or benefit that has
been achieved for him from that.

| Article Twenty-Four Agreements, Contracts and Conflicts:

Interests and Competition of the Company:

1-The Company shall have the right after obtaining a no-
objection of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority. To
conclude an agreement to manage services Technical with
one or more companies qualified in the insurance field.
2-A member of the Board of Directors may not have any
direct or indirect interest in business and contracts that
are made for the account The company is only authorized
by the ordinary general assembly, and the member of the
board of directors must inform the collector of his direct
or indirect interest in the business and contracts that are
made for the company’'s account, and this notification
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.

3- This member may not participate in voting on the
decision to be issued in this regard in the Board of
Directors and shareholders ‘assemblies

4- The Chairman of the Board of Directors informs the
Ordinary General Assembly when it convenes about the
business and contracts in which one of the Board members
has a direct or indirect interest in it. Special from the
company's external auditor

5- If a member of the board fails to disclose his interest,
the company or any interested party may claim before the
competent judicial authority to prolong the contract or
oblige the member to pay any profit or benefit achieved
for him from that.

6-Responsibility for damages resulting from the works and
contracts referred to in Paragraph (1) of this Article rests
on the member with an interest in the work or contract, as
well as on the members of the Board

7-Members of the Board of Directors who are opposed to
the decision are exempted from responsibility when they
express their objection explicitly in the minutes of the
meeting. Absence from attending the meeting at which
the decision is issued is not considered a reason for
exemption from responsibility unless it is proven that the
absent member did not know about the decision or was
unable to object to it after being aware of it

8-t is not permissible for a member of the Board of
Directors to participate in any business that would
compete with the company, or to compete with the
company in any of the branches of the activity that it is
practicing; otherwise, the company has the right to
demand compensation from him before the competent
judicial authority, unless he has obtained a previous
license from the Ordinary General Assembly — renewable
every year - he is allowed to do this




| Article Twenty-Five: Attending the assemblles:

of a properly formed General Assembly that represents
all the shareholders, and is held in the city in which the
head office of the company is located, and every
shareholder, regardless of the number of his shares, has
the right to attend the general assemblies of the
shareholders and he has the right to delegate on him
another person who is not a member of the Board of
Directors or Company employees attend the General
Assembly, and it is permissible to hold general assembly
meetings of shareholders and shareholder participation
in their deliberations and vote on their decisions by
means of modern technology, according to the controls

Article Twenty-Five: Attendance at the Assemblies:

- The properly formed general assembly represents all: the
shareholders, and is held in the city in which the head
office of the company is located. 2- Every shareholder,
regardless of the number of his shares, has the right to
attend the general assemblies of shareholders, and he has
the right to delegate to him another person who is not
members of the board of directors or company employees
to attend the general assembly. General meetings of
shareholders may be held and the sharehoider
participates in their deliberations and voting on their
decisions by means of technology. Modern according to
the controls set by the Capital Market Authority.

Article Twenty-Six: The Constituent Assembly:
The founders call all subscribers to hold a
constituent assembly within (45) forty-five days
from the closing date of the shares subscription,
and each subscriber - regardless of the number of
his shares - has the right to attend the constituent
assembly. For the meeting to be valid, the
attendance of a number of subscribers representing
at least (half) of the capital. If this quorum is not
available. An invitation was sent to a second
meeting to be held at least (15) fifteen days after
being invited. Nevertheless, the second meeting
may be held one hour after the expiry of the period
specified for the first meeting to take place, and the
invitation to hold the first meeting must include
proof of the possibility of holding this meeting. In all
cases, the second meeting shall be valid regardless
of the number of subscribers represented.

Article Twenty-Six: The Constituent Assembly:

1. The founders invite all subscribers to hold a
founding assembly within {45) forty-five days from
the date of closing the shares subscription, provided
that the period between the date of the invitation and
the date of the meeting is not less than ten days.

2. Every subscriber - regardless of the number of his |
shares - has the right to attend the constituent
assembly, and for the meeting to be valid, a number
of subscribers with at least half (half) of the capital
must attend. If this quorum is not met, an invitation
will be issued to a second meeting to be held after
(15) fifteen days at least from the invitation to it.
However, the second meeting may take place one
hour later The deadline for holding the first meeting
has expired The invitation to hold the first meeting
shall include indications of the possibility of holding
this meeting. In all cases, the second meeting shall be
valid regardless of the number of subscribers
represented. J




| Article Twenty-Seven: The Competences of the | Article Twenty-Seven: The Compéténees of the

Constituent Assembly:

1- Verification of the underwriting of all the shares of the

company and who

Meet the minimum capital and the amount

Due from the value of shares

2- Approval of the final texts of the company's articles of
| association, however, substantial changes are made to

the system presented to it, except with the consent of

all subscribers Actors in it.

3- Appointing the first members of the company's board

of directors for a period of not exceeding (3) three years

if they have not been included in the company’s articles

of incorporation or its articles of association. A copy of

the invitation and the agenda is sent to the Capital

Market Authority. Nevertheless, it is permissible to

address the invitation on the aforementioned time to all

shareholders by registered letters.

Constituent Assembly:

The Constituent Assembly shall be competent in the
following matters:

1-Verification of the underwriting of all the shares of the
company and the fulfiliment of the minimum capital and
the amount due from the value of the shares according to
the provisions of the system.

2-To discuss the report of evaluating the in-kind shares.

| 3- Approval of the final texts of the company's

articles of association, provided that substantial
amendments are not made to the system presented to it
except with the approval of all subscribers represented
therein.

4- Appointing the members of the first board of directors
for a period not exceeding five years and the first auditor
if they have not been appointed in the company’s articles
of association or its articles of association.

5-Discussing and approving the founders' reports on the
business and expenditures required by the establishment
of the company and approving it. The Ministry of
Commerce as well as Capital Market Authority may
delegate a representative {or or) as an observer to attend
the constituent assembly of the company to ensure the
application of the provisions of the law.

Article Thirty-second: The quorum for the ordinary |

general assembly meeting:

1- The meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly is not
valid unless there are shareholders who represent (the
proceeds} of the company’s capital at least. The
percentage may be higher, provided that it does not
exceed half. This quorum was not available at the first
meeting, and was invited to a second meeting will be
held during the 30 days following the meeting the
previous. This invitation shall be published in the
manner stipulated in Article {30) of this bylaw.
Nevertheless, the meeting may take place The second
one hour after the end of the period specified for the
first meeting, provided that the invitation to hold the
first meeting includes indications of announcing the
possibility of holding this meeting, and in all cases the
second meeting is valid regardless of the number of
shares represented. It is permissible to hold regular
general assembly meetings for shareholders and the
shareholder's participation in their deliberations and
voting on its decisions by means of modern technology,
according to the controls laid down by the competent
authority

Article Thirty-second: The quorum for the ordinary
general assembly meeting:

1-The meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly is not
valid unless there are shareholders who represent
(quarter) of the company’s capital at least.

2- if the quorum required for holding the ordinary general
assembly meeting in accordance with Paragraph (1) of this
Article is not available, a second meeting will be invited to
be held during the 30 days following the meeting the
previous. This invitation shall be published in the manner
stipulated in Article (30) of this bylaw. Nevertheless, the
meeting may take place after one hour after the end of the
period specified for the first meeting to be held, provided
that the invitation to hold the first meeting includes
indications of announcing the possibility of holding this
meeting, and in all cases the second meeting is valid
regardless of the number of shares represented in it.




' Article Thirty-third: The Quorum of the extraordinary | Article Thirty-third: The Quorum of the extraordinary |

general assembly meeting:
The meeting of the extraordinary general assembly shall
not be wvalid unless attended by shareholders
representing at least (half) of the company's capita! (it
may be a higher percentage, provided that it does not
exceed two thirds). If this quorum is not availabie at the
first meeting, the invitation is issued for a second
meeting, the same conditions As stipulated in Article
(20) of this bylaw, and the second meeting may take
place one hour after the end of the period specified for
the first meeting to take place, provided that the
invitation to hold the first meeting includes a statement
indicating the possibility of this meeting, and in all cases
the second meeting shall be valid if it is attended. A
number of shareholders representing (a quarter) of the
capital at least, and if the necessary quorum is not met
in the second meeting, an invitation is issued to a third
meeting to be held in the same conditions stipulated in
Article {20) of this system, and the third meeting is valid
regardiess of the number of shares represented in it.
After approval of the competent authorities.
Extraordinary general assembly meetings may be held
for shareholders and the participation of the
shareholder in its deliberations and voting on its
decisions by means of modern technology, according to
the controls set by the competent authority.

general assembly meeting:

1- The meeting of the extraordinary general
assembly is not valid unless attended by sharehoiders
representing at least half the company’s capital

2- If the quorum necessary for holding the
extraordinary general assembly pursuant to para (10) is
not available, the invitation is addressed for a second
meeting, with the same conditions stipulated in Article
(30) of this Law. The second meeting may be held one hour
after the end of the period specified for holding the first
meeting provided that the invitation for holding the first
meeting includes a proof of declaring the possibility of
holding this meeting and in all cases the second meeting Is
valid if attended by a number of subscribers representing
at least a quarter of the capital.

3- If the quorum is not available in the second
meeting an invitation is addressed for a third meeting to
be held according to the same terms stipulated in article
(30) of this law. The third meeting shall be valid whatever
the number of shares represented in it may be subject to
the approval of Capital Market Authority.

Article Thirty-fifth: Resolutions of the Assemblles:
Decisions in the Constituent Assembly are issued by an
absolute majority of the shares represented in it, and
decisions of the Ordinary General Assembly are issued
by an absolute majority of the shares represented in the
meeting (a higher percentage may be stipulated). The
aforementioned after excluding the special benefits
subscribed by the beneficiaries, and we issue decisions
In the extraordinary general assembly with a two-thirds
majority of the shares represented in the meeting unless
the decision relates to an increase or decrease in the
capital or extending the term of the company or
dissolving the company before the period specified in its
statute or its incorporation into a company Or in another
institution, the decislon is not valid unless it is issued by
a majority of three quarters of the shares represented in
the meeting

Article Thirty-fifth: Resolutions of the Assemblies:

Decisions in the Constituent Assembly are issued by the
absolute majority of the shares represented in it, and the
decisions of the Ordinary General Assembly are issued by
an absolute majority of the shares represented in the
meeting. However, if these decisions relate to the
evaluation of special benefits, the approval of the majority
of subscribers is required for the shares that represent
(two-thirds) of the mentioned shares after excluding the
special benefits subscribed by the beneficiaries; and we
issue decisions in the extraordinary general assembly by a
majority of two-thirds of the shares represented in the
meeting unless the decision is related to an increase or
decrease in the capital or extending the term of the
company or the dissolution of the company before the
period specified in its statute or its Incorporation into a
company or in another institution, the decision is not valid
unless it is issued by a majority of three quarters of the

| shares represented in the meeting.




Article Thirty-sixth: Discussion In the Assemblies:
Every shareholder has the right to discuss the topics on
the assembly’s agenda and to address questions about
them to the members of the board of directors and the
accounts auditor. Any text in this system that denies the
shareholder this right is void. The board of directors or
the auditor answers the shareholders ’questions to the
extent that it does not compromise the interest of the
company. And If the shareholder thinks that the answer
to his question is not convincing, he must refer to the
assembly and its decision in this regard is enforceable.
Article Thirty-ninth: Appointment of Accounts Auditor:
The general assembly must appoint two (or more)
auditors from among the auditors authorized to work in
the Kingdom. And determine their remuneration and the
duration of their work, and may re-appoint them. The
General Assembly may also, at all times, change them
without prejudice to their right to compensation if the
change occurred at an inappropriate time or for an
unlawful reason.

| Article Thirty-sixth: Discussion in the Assemblies: ]
Every shareholder has the right to discuss the topics on the
assembly’s agenda and to address questions about them
to the members of the board of directors and the accounts
auditor. Any text in this system that denies the
shareholder this right is void. The board of directors or the
auditor answers the shareholders ‘questions to the extent
that it does not compromise the interest of the company.

' And if the shareholder thinks that the answer to his
question is not convincing, he must refer to the assembly

| and its decision in this regard is enforceable. B
Article Thirty-ninth: Appointment of Accounts Audltor:
The General Assembly must appoint one (or more)
auditors from among the auditors licensed to work In the
Kingdom. It shall determine their remuneration and the
duration of their work, and it may reappoint them
provided that the period of his total appointment period
does not exceed five consecutive years. whoever
completes this period may be reappointed after two years

| of its expiry. The General Assembly may also, at any time,
change them without prejudice to their right to
compensation if the change occurred at a specific time.
Not appropriate or for an unlawful reason,

Article Forty-one: Obligations of the auditor:

The auditor must submit to the annual general assembly
a report prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing standards, which is included in the
position of the company’s management to enable him to

obtain the data and clarifications he requested and what
he has uncovered in violation of the provisions of the
Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law and its
implementing regulations And other laws, regulations
and instructions | Related and his opinion on the
fairness .of the company's financial statements. The
auditor reads his report in the General Assembly. If the
assembly decides to approve the report of the board of
directors and the financial statements without hearing
the auditor’s report, its decision will be null

Article Forty-one Obligations of the Auditor:

The auditor must submit a report to the annual general
assembly in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
standards, which is ensured by the position of the company’s
management to enable him to obtain the data and
clarifications that he has painted and what he has uncovered |
of the violation of the provisions of the Cooperative
Insurance Companies Control Law and its implementing
regulations. And the laws, regulations and other relevant
instructions, the company’s bylaw and its opinion on the
fairness of the company's financial statements. The auditor
reads his report in the General Assembly. If the association
decides to approve the report of its board of directors and
the financial statements without hearing the auditor's
report, its decision shall be null

Article Forty-Three: Financlal Documents:

1. At the end of each fiscal year, it shall be requested by
| the Board of Directors

Article Forty-Three: Financlal Documents:
At the end of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors must
prepare the financial statements {the financial statements




Preparing the financial statements (the financial
statements consist of: a list | the financial position of
insurance operations and shareholders, a list of surplus
{deficit) of insurance operations, a list of shareholders
'income, a list of shareholders' rights, a list of cash flows
for insurance ‘operations and a list of cash flows for
shareholders), and a report on the company's activity
and financial position for the elapsed fiscal year. This
report includes the method that it proposes to distribute
profits, and the board places these documents at the
disposal of the auditor, at least forty-five (45) days
before the date set for the meeting of the general
assembly. 2- The Chairman, Chief Executive, and
Financial Director of the Board of Directors must sign the
documents mentioned in paragraph (1) and copies of
them shall be deposited in the head office of the
company at the disposal of the shareholders, at least ten
days before the date set for the meeting of the general
assembly. The chairman of the board of directors shall
provide the sharehofders with the financial statements
of the company, the report of the board of directors and
the auditor's report, unless he supervises a daily
newspaper that is distributed in the headquarters of the
company, provided that he sends a copy of these
documents to the Capital Market Authority before the
date of the ordinary general assembly meeting (15) five

Ten days at least

I 0

Article Forty-five: Zakat and Reserve:
The company must:
1- Set aside zakat and assessed income tax
2 - Set aside (20%) of the net profits to form a statutory
reserve, and the Ordinary General Assembly may
suspend this reserve when the total reserve reaches
(100%) of the paid capital

3- The Ordinary General Assembly, upon determining
the share of shares in the net profits, may decide to form
other reserves, to the extent that it serves the
company's interest or it ensures that as much as possible
constant dividends are distributed to the shareholders.

| least.

consist of a list of financial position, insurance and |
shareholder operations, a list of surplus (deficit) of its
insurance operations, a list of shareholders 'income, a list of
shareholders’ rights, a list. Insurance operations cash flow
and shareholder cash flow statement). And a report on the
company's activity and its financial statements position for
the past financial year. This report includes the method that
it proposes for the distribution of profits and the Board sets
forth the documents are at the disposal of the auditor,
before the date specified for the meeting of the General
Assembly, by (45) forty-five days

the least

2- The Chairman, Chief Executive and Financial Director of
the Board of Directors must sign the documents mentioned
in Paragraph (1), and copies of them shall be deposited in the
head office of the company at the disposal of the
shareholders at least (21) twenty-one days before the date
set for the meeting of the General Assembly.

3- The chairman of the board of directors must provide the
shareholders with the financial statements of the company,
the report of the board of directors, and the auditor's report,
unless they are published in a daily newspaper distributed in
the headquarters of the company, and he must also send a
copy of these documents to the Ministry of Commerce and
Investment and the Financial Market Authority before the
date of the ordinary general meeting. Ab (10) fifteen days at

|
|

]
]

Article Forty-filve Zakat, reserves and profit distribution:
The company must:
| 1- Zakat and income tax legally prescribed.

2- To Set aside (20%) of the net profits to form a statutory
reserve, and the Ordinary General Assembly may stop this |
set aside when the total reserve reaches (100%) of the paid
capital

3- The Ordinary General Assembly, when determining the
share of shares in the net profits, may decide to create other
reserves, to the extent that it serves the interest of the
company or guarantees the distribution of fixed profits as |
possible to the shareholders.

4- The net annual profits of the company that it determines
after allocating them shall be distributed all the general
expenses and other costs, and the formation of the
necessary reserves to meet the doubtful debts, investment
| risks and contingent liabilities that the Board of Directors




deems necessary in accordance with the provisions of the
Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law and the |
provisions issued by the Saudi Arablan Monetary Agency.
The remainder of the profits after deducting the reserves
determined according to the relevant regulations and zakat,
a percentage of not less than (20%) - not less than 1% of the
paid-up capital for distribution to the shareholders according
to what is proposed by the Board of Directors and provided
by the General Assembly, and if the remaining percentage is
from the profits owed to the shareholders. This percentage
is not sufficient to pay, so the shareholders may not demand
to pay it in the following year or years, and the General
Assembly may not decide to distribute a percentage of
profits in excess of what the Board of Directors has
proposed.

Article Forty-nine: Responsibility of Board Members:

1-The members of the Board of Directors shail be jointly
responsible for indemnifying the company, the
shareholders or others for the damage that results from
their mismanagement of the company's affairs or their
violation of the provisions of the Cooperative insurance
Companies Control Law and its implementing regulations,
regulations, bylaws and other relevant instructions, and
every condition requiring otherwise shall be deemed null
and void. Responsibility rests on all members of the board
of directors if the error arises from a decision issued by
their unanimous vote. As for decisions issued by the

majority of opinions, the opposing members will not be
asked about them once they express their objection in the
Minutes of the meeting. Nor after being absent from the
meeting at which the decision is issued causes exemption
from liability unless it is proven that the absent member is
not aware of the decision or is unable to objection to it '
after learning about it. Filing a liability lawsuit does not

| preclude the approval of the Ordinary General Assembly

Article Forty-nine: Responsibility of Board Members: |
The members of the Board of Directors shall be jointly
responsible for indemnifying the company, shareholders or
others for the damage that results fram their
mismanagement of the company's affairs or their violation
of the provisions of the Cooperative Insurance Companies
Control Law and its implementing regulations and the rules,
regulations and other relevant instructions and this system,
and every condition requiring otherwise is considered as if
it were not. Responsibility rests on all members of the
board of directors if the error arises from a decision issued
by their unanimous vote. As for the decisions issued by the
majority of votes Opinions. The opposing members are not
asked about them once they explicitly prove their objection
in the minutes of the meeting. Absence from attending the
meeting at which the decision is issued is not a reason for
exemption from Liability unless it is proven that the absent
member is hot aware of the decision or is unable to object |
to it after being aware of It. |



competencies of the class. insurance operations surplus

to absolve the members of the Board of Directors. The |
liability lawsuit shall not be heard after the lapse of {) three
years from the date of discovery of the harmful act, and
with the exception of the cases of fraud and forgery, the
liabllity lawsuit is not heard in all cases after the lapse of
(5} five years from the end of the fiscal year in which the
harmful act occurred or 2) Three years from the
termination of the membership of the concerned board
member, whichever is later. Each shareholder has the right
to file the liability lawsuit for the company against the
members of the board of directors if the mistake made by
them would cause special harm to him. The shareholder is
not entitled to file the aforementioned lawsuit unless the
company’s right to file it is still valid. The shareholder must
inform the company of his intention to file a lawsuit, while
restricting his right to claim compensation for the special
damage he suffered

2- The approval of the ordinary general assembly does not
prevent the members of the board of directors from being
discharged from liability.

3- The liability lawsuit shall not be heard after the lapse of
(3) three years from the date of the harmful act being
discovered. Except for the cases of fraud and forgery. The
liability lawsuit will not be heard In all cases after the lapse
of (5) five years from the end of the fiscal year in which the
harmful act occurred, or (3) three years from the expiration
of the membership of the concerned board member,
whichever is later.

4- Each shareholder has the right to file the liability lawsuit
for the company against the members of the board of
directors if the mistake made by them would cause special
harm to him. The shareholder may not file the
aforementioned lawsuit unless the company’s right to file it
is still valid. The shareholder must inform the company of
his intention to file a lawsuit, while restricting his right to
claim compensation for the special damage he suffered.
5-The company may be charged the following expenses
that it costs the shareholder to file a lawsuit, regardless of
its outcome, with the following conditions:

A- If he institutes the lawsuit in good faith.

B - If we present to the company the reason for which the
lawsuit was filed and there is no response within thirty
days.

C. If it is in the interest of the company to institute this
lawsuit based on the provision of {[Article 79) of the

Companies Law.

D. That the lawsuit is based on a valid basis.

Article Fifty: Company Expiration:

Upon its dissolution, the company enters the role of
liquidation and maintains the necessary legal personality
to the extent necessary for liquidation.

The liquidation declsion must include the appointment of
the classroom, the determination of his powers, his fees,
the restrictions imposed on his powers, and the period of |
time required for the liquidation, and it must not exceed
the liquidation period | Electives are (5) five years, and
may not be extended for more than

That Is, except by a court order, and the authority of the
company'’s board of directors to dissolve it ends.
Nevertheless, these remain in charge of managing the
company and are excluded from others in the judgment
of the liquidators until the oath of the liquidator, and the
company's bodies remain during the liquidation period
their competencies that do not conflict with the

Article Fifty: Company Expiration:

1-Upon its expiration, the company enters the role of
liquidation and maintains the necessary legal personality to
the extent necessary for liquidation

2-The voluntary liquidation resolution is issued by partners
or the general assembly.

3-The liquidation resolution must include the appointment
of the liquidater and to specify his authorities and
remunerations and the restrictions on its powers and time
frame necessary for liquidation. The voluntary liquidation
period must not exceed five (5) years and may not be
extended for more than that period without a judicial order.
4-The authority of the company’s board of directors ends
with its dissolution, yet the members of the board remain
in charge of managing the company and are counted for
others as liquidators until the liquidator is appointed, and
the company's apparatus retains, during the liquication
period, its competencies that do not conflict with those of




and reserves formed as stipulated in Articles (44) and {40) | the liquidator. The rights of the participants in the surplus '

of this Law of insurance operations and the reserves formed as

Note: Chapter 10 and Chapter have been deleted stipulated in Articles {44) and (45) of this Law shall be taken
into consideration in the liquidation

Note: Chapter 10 and Chapter 11 have been deleted and their articles have been added to Chapter 9



